@ CP | B Industries Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE : 14 TARATOLLA ROAD, KOLKATA - 700 088, INDIA
CIN : U74210WB1982PLC035417

15t September, 2022

The Secretary

The Calcutta Stock Exchange Association Ltd.
7 Lyons Range

Kolkata-700001

Dear Sir,

Sub: Annual Report for the financial year ended 31% Mérch, 2022

We enclose, in terms of Regulations 30 and 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 a copy of the Report and Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2022 together with the Notice dated May 28, 2022 convening the 37" Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held on Friday, September 23, 2022 at 11.0 A.M. (IST) through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other
Audio Visual Means (DAVM), in conformity with the regulatory provisions and Circulars issued by the Ministry of

Corporate Affairs, Government of India.

This is for your kind information and records.

Thanking you,

-Yours faithfully
* :For CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

AogloKon  Agoiluak
(Company Secretary)

Encl: As above



NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Thirty Seven (37%) Annual General Meeting of the members of
CPL Industries Limited will be held at the registered office of the Company on Friday, the 23rd day
of September 2022, at 11:00 a.m. at 14, Taratolla Road, Kolkata — 700 088 to transact the following
business:

D1 Y BUSINE

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for
the year ended 31stMarch, 2022 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors
thereon.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company
for the year ended 31stMarch, 2022 together with the report of Auditors thereon.

It - Appoin i i i rotati

To appoint a director in place of Mr. Subhankar Banerjee (DIN: 00137649), who retires by
rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.
SPECIAL BUSINESS:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152 and other applicabie
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with schedule IV to the said Act and
the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 including any statutory
modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force, Ms. Nupur Somani (DIN
09604391), Non-Executive Independent Director who was appointed as an Additional Director
of the Company on 17 May, 2022 and who has submitted a declaration confirming that she meets
the criteria of Independence under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Listing Regulations, as amended from time to time, and who is eligible for appointment under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Rules made thereunder and Listing Regulations and
in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a Member proposing his
candidature for the office of Independent Director of the Company u/s 160 of the Companies Act,
2013 be and is hereby appointed as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company and
to hold office for a term of one year, w.e.f May 17, 2022.”

Registered Office: By order of the Board for CPL Industries Limited
14, Taratolla Road
Kolkata - 700 088 gﬁ' "

Aashjka Agarwal

Company Secretary

Membership No.- 36914
Place: Kolkata
Date: 28.05.2022




NOTES:

1.

10.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY, TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND SUCH
A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

Proxies in order to be effective, must be received by the Company, duly filled, stamped and
signed, at its Registered Office not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
Meeting.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights. A member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for
any other person or shareholder.

Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the meeting
are requested to send the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their
representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting,

The Register of Members and Share Transfer books of the Company shall remain closed from
19.09.2022 to 23.09.2022(both days inclusive).

Members/proxies/authorized representatives are requested to bring the duly filled
attendance slip to attend the Annual General Meeting along with their copy of Annual Report.

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order
of names will be entitled to vote at the meeting.

Members who are holding shares in the demat form are requested to bring their Depository
ID Number and Client ID Number to facilitate easier identification for attendance at the
meeting.

Members desirous of asking any questions at the Annual General Meeting and desiring any
information as regards the Accounts are requested to write to the Company at least ten days
before the date of Annual General Meeting so as to enable the Management to keep the
information ready.

Keeping in view the “Green Initiative in Corporate Governance” of Ministry of Corporate
Affairs and in continuation to the practice adopted in previous years, the Company proposes
to continue to send notices / documents including annual reports, etc. to the members in
electronic form. Members who have still not registered their email addresses are requested to
register their email addresses, in respect of electronic holdings with the Depository through
the concerned Depository Participants and in respect of physical holdings with the Company’s
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, CB Management Services Private Limited, P-22
Bondel Road, Kolkata- 700019.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of
Permanent Account Number (PAN) and Bank particulars by every participant in the securities
market. Shareholders holding shares in electronic form are therefore requested to submit
their PAN and Bank details to their Depository Participant and shareholders holding shares in
physical form are requested to submit their PAN and Bank details to the Company’s Registrar
and Share Transfer Agents, CB Management Services Private Limited, P-22 Bondel Road,
Kolkata- 700019. Those shareholders who has already updated/provided the above said
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11.

12,

IL

details need not require sending the same again.

The Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2022 and
reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors’ Report thereon and all other documents
required by law to be annexed or attached to the Financial Statements shall be available for
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days during business hours
between 11.00 a.m. and 2.00 p.m. up to the date of ensuing date of Annual General Meeting.

Voting through Electronic means:

il

ill.

In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the
Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation
44 of the Securities And Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations And Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide members facility
to exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the 37t
Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted
through e-Voting Services. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an
agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL}) for facilitating voting
through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting
the votes by the members using an electronic voting system from a place other than
venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) will be provided by National Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL).

The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and the
members attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall
be able to exercise their right at the meeting through ballot paper. The members who
have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but
shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under:

The voting period begins on Tuesday, 20th September, 2022 at 9.00 a.m. and ends on
Thusday, 22nd September, 2022 at 5.00 p.m. During this period shareholders’ of the
Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the
cut-off date Friday, 16t September, 2022 may cast their vote electronically. The e-
voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter.

Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled
to vote at the meeting venue.

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9,
2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to
update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-
Voting facility.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR YOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS:

In compliance with section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules 2014, substituted by Companies (Management and
Administration) Amendment Rules 2015 and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, and in terms of SEBI vide circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/ CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 in relation to e-Voting Facility
Provided by Listed Entities, the Members are provided with the facility to cast their vote
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electronically, through the eVoting services provided by NSDL, on all the resolutions set forth in
this Notice.

The instructions for members voting electronically are as under:
1. The details of the process and manner for remote e-Voting are explained herein below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

Details on Step 1 are mentioned below:
A) Login method for remote e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through
their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are
advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-
Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of |Login Method

shareholders

Individual A. NSDL IDeAS facility

Shareholders If you are already registered, follow the below steps:

holding 1. Visit the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
securities in | following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer
demat mode | or on a mobile.

with NSDL. 2. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial

Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under “IDeAS” section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password.
After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services.

4. Click on “Access to e-Voting” appearing on the left hand side under e-
Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page.

5. Click on options available against company name or e-Voting service
provider - NSDL and you will be re-directed to NSDL e-Voting website for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

If you are not registered, follow the below steps:

1. Option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl. com. 2. Select
“Register Online for IDeAS” Portal or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3. Please follow steps given in points 1-5.

B. e-Voting website of NSDL

1. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a personal computer or on a
mobile phone.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon
“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (ie. your
sixteen digit demat account number held with NSDL), Password / OTP and
a Verification Code as shown on the screen.




4, After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL website
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on options available against
company name or e-Voting service provider - NSDL and you will be
redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period.

Individual 1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, can login through their
Shareholders user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting
holding page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to
securities in Easi / Easiest is https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or
demat mode www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi.

with CDSL 2. After successful login of Easi / Easiest the user will be also able to see

the e-Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of ESP i.e. NSDL portal. Click
on NSDL to cast your vote.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is
available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration.
Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing
demat Account Number and PAN from a link in www.cdslindia.com
home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on
registered Mobile and e-mail as recorded in the demat Account. After
successful authentication, user will be provided links for the respective
ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress.

Individual 1. You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
Shareholders through your DP registered with NSDL / CDSL for e-Voting facility.
(holding 2. Once logged-in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you clickon

e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL / CDSL Depository site
after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature.
. Click on options available against company name or e-Voting service
login  through provider - NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL
their depository for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.
participants

securities in
demat  mode) | 5

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues
related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
holding  securities in | pelpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll
demat mode with NSDL | free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

Individual Shareholders | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL
holding securities in helpdesk by sending a request at
demat mode with CDSL | helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 or
022-23058542-43

B) Login Method for e-Voting other than Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.



How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is

available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a

Verification Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices ie. IDEAS, you can log-in at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after
using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 ie. Cast your vote

electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or
CDSL) or Physical

Your User ID is:

a) For Members who hold shares in demat
account with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client
ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is

b) For Members who hold shares in demat
account with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example if your Beneficiary ID is

12¥0pekrkikikiek then your user ID is
12**************

¢) For Members holding shares in Physical Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number
registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and
EVEN is 101456 then wuser ID is
101456001***

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing
password to login and cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve

the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your

‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will

force you to change your password.

¢) How to retrieve your ‘initial password'?

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company,
your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the
email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open
the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the
.pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID
for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf
file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in
process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.




6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have
forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?"(If you are holding shares in your demat
account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) Ifyou are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio
number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the
votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on
the check box.

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2:
H ronically on NSDL e-Voti ?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN" in which
you are holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status.

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting

period.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options ie. assent or dissent, verify/modify the
number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also
“Confirm” when prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the
confirmation page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

|98

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with
attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to
the Scrutinizer by e-mail to patnaikandpatnaik@yahoo.com with a copy marked to
evoting@nsdl.co.in

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through
the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders
and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of
www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 or send a request
to NSDL at evoting@nsdl.co.in

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions
set out in this notice:



1.

In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned
copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card),
AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to cplindustries19@gmail.com

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16
digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to
cplindustries19@gmail.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method
for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user
id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through
their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are
required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to
access e-Voting facility.

Other Instructions
1. Mr. S K Patnaik, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS 5699) Partner of M/s.

Patnaik & Patnaik, Company Secretaries has been appointed by the Board of Directors as the
Scrutinizer for providing facility to the members of the Company, to scrutinize the remote e-
voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes
cast during the AGM, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting and prepare, not
later than 2 working days of conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the
total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorised by him in
writing, who shall countersign the same.

The result declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's website
and on the website of NSDL https://www.evoting.nsdl.com immediately after the declaration of
the results by the Chairman or person authorized by him in writing.



As required under Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013('The Act'), the following explanatory
statements set out all material facts relating to the business mentioned under items no.4 of the
accompanying Notice.

The Board has recommended for appointment of Ms. Nupur Somani (DIN 09604391), Non-
Executive Independent Director who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company on
17 May, 2022 In terms of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has received a
notice in writing from a Member proposing the candidature of Ms. Somani to be appointed as an
Independent Director as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. In the opinion of the Board,
Ms. Somani meets the criteria of independence as laid down under Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI
(Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2015. Ms. Somani is not disqualified
from being appointed as Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and has consented to act as an
Independent Director of the Company and has provided all the necessary disclosures in this regard.
In compliance with the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV of the Act and SEBI
Regulations, the appointment of Ms. Somani as an Independent Director with effect from 17 May,
2022 for a period of 1 year is now being placed before the Members for their approval.

None of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives,
except Ms. Somani, in any way, are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the
resolution set out in item No. 4 of the Notice. The Board of Directors of the company recommends
the resolution set out in item No. 4 as Special Resolution for approval of the members.



Name of the Director Mr. Subhankar Ms. Nupur Somani
Banerjee
Date of Birth 28/02/1965 30/10/1990
Date of Appointment 31/01/2020 17/05/2022
Qualification B. COM B.COM AND CA ATC
Expertise in Specific Functional | HUMAN RESOURCES | ACCOUNTS & FINANCE
areas
Directorship held in listed NIL NIL
Companies
Committee Membership in NIL NIL
other Listed
Companies
Shareholding in the Company NIL NIL
By order of the Board

For CPL Industries Limited

Sd / —
AashikalAgarwal
Company Secretary

Membership No.- 36914

Place: Kolkata
Date: 28.05.2022

Registered Office:
14, Taratolla Road
Kolkata - 700 088
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To

The Members

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 37"Annual Report on the business and
operations of your Company together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year
ended 31st March, 2022.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The financial performance of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2022 is
summarized below:

Amount (Rs)

Standalone Consolidated
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March
March 31,2022 | March 31,2021 31,2022 March 31,2021
Revenue from - - - -
Operations I o - o
Other Income 5,868 24,597 2,37,629 2,49,155
Total Income | 5868 | 24597 | 237,629 | 249155
| Total Expenditure 328925 | 1,01,610 405,253 | 144,080
‘Profit before Finance | (3,23,057) S (77013) | (L,67624) | 1,05075
Costs, Exceptional
Item, Tax, Depreciation
and Amortization | - I | N
Less: Finance Costs - - - -
Less: Dépreciatiof; & o - = =
_Amortization Expenses | - B - - o
Profit before (3,23,057) (77,013) (1,67,624) 1,05,075
Exceptional Item and
Tax - - - - o -
Exceptional Items - . - -
Profit Before Tax (323,057) |  (77,013) (1,67,624) 1,05075
Current Tax - - 39,000 46,280
| Deferred Tax i - S = IE = =
Prior Period | - | - -
Adjustment - B . . )
Profit After Tax (3,23,057) (77,013) (2,06,624) 58,048

STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

During the financial year ended 315t March, 2022, the Company recorded a total income of
Rs. 5,868/ - as compared to total income of Rs. 24,597/~ in the previous financial year. The



Company incurred a loss of Rs. 3,23,057/- in the financial year 2021-22as against a loss of Rs.
77,013/- in the previous financial year.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company is prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015. The Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements along with the Auditors’ Report form part of the Annual
Report.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

There was no transfer made to any reserve of the Company for the financial year ended 31st
March, 2022.

DIVIDEND

In view of the loss, the Board of Directors of your Company has decided not to recommend
any Dividend for the year under review.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year under review, there has been no change in the Capital structure of the
Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In Accordance with Article of Association of the Company and the provision of the Section
152 of the Companies Act, 2013 Mr. Subhankar Banerjee (DIN: 00137649) will retire by
rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for
reappointment.

On 17.05.2022, Ms. Nupur Somani (DIN : 09604391) was appointed as an additional Director
(non executive Independent Director) of the Company to hold office till the conclusion of
the next Annual General Meeting and Ms. Sangita Agarwal has resign as Non-Executive
Director due to her personal reason from the board of the Company.

In terms of the provisions of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013, none of the Directors of
the Company are disqualified for appointment or for continuation as Director of the
Company.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the period under review, the Board met 8(eight) times on 16.04.2021, 18.06.2021,
02.08.2021, 18.10.2021, 12.01.2022, 18.02.2022, 23.03.2022 & 25.03.2022. The gap between two
consecutive meetings did not exceed the limit as stipulated in Section 173 of the Companies
Act, 2013.



Members Committee meetings  Committee Meetings
held during the year attended during the
B ~ year
Ms. Sangita Agarwal 8 1 8
Mr.Rangan Dasgupta | 8 8 N
Mr. Subhankar Banerjee N 8 8

COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD

As on March 31, 2022 the Board had three committees: the Audit Committee, the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee. During the year,
all recommendations made by the committees were approved by the Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company has three members comprising of Ms Sangita
Agarwal, Mr Rangan Dasgupta and Mr. Subhankar Banerjee During the period under
review, 4 (four) Audit Committee meetings were held i.e. on 18t June, 2021, 18% October
2021, 12% January 2022, and 23+ March 2022..

Pursuant to Section 177(8) of the Companies Act, 2013, it is reported that there has not been
an occasion where Board has not accepted any recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Attendance of the members of the Committee held during the year was as follows:

Members | Committee meetings held | Committee Meetings
S | duringtheyear | attended during the year
| Ms. Sangita Agarwal | 4 4
MrRanganDasgupta | 4 4
 MrSubhankar Banerjee | 4 Y —

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company has three members
comprising of Ms. Sangita Agarwal, Mr. Subhankar Banerjee and Mr Rangan Dasgupta
During the period under review, 1 (one) Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting
was held i.e. on 18t June, 2021.

Attendance of the members of the Committee held during the year was as follows:

Members Committee méetings held | Committee Meetings
- —— during the year | attended during the year
1. Ms. Sangita Agarwal 1 1
2. Mr Rangan Dasgupta - 1 - 1
3. Mr Subhankar Banerjee _ 1 R _________]




STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Company has three members comprising
of Ms. Sangita Agarwal, Mr. Subhankar Banerjee and Mr Rangan Dasgupta During the
period under review, 1 (one) Stakeholders Relationship Committee meeting was held i.e. on

18th February 2022.

Attendance of the members of the Committee held during the year was as follows:

Members | Committee meetings held Committee Meetings
during theyear | attended during the year
1. Ms.Sangita Agarwal | 1 1
2. Mr Rangan Dasgupta | 1 1 -
3. Mr Subhankar 1 1
Banerjee B B
STATUTORY AUDITORS

The members of the Company at the Annual General Meeting held on 20th July, 2018
approved the appointment of M/s Dattson & Co, Chartered Accountants, Firm registration
No: 311061E, as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of five years to hold office
until the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year
2023.

ANNUAL RETURN

In compliance with Section 92(3) and Section 134(3)(a) of the Act read with Companies
(Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2020, the Annual Return for FY 2021-
22 in the prescribed format has been placed at the Company’s website.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Auditors” Report read together with the Notes on Accounts are self-explanatory and
therefore do not call for any further explanation and comments. There are no qualifications,
reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by the Auditor.

FRAUD REPORTING

There have been no instances of frauds reported by the Auditor under Section 143(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013 or Rules framed thereunder either to the Company or to the Central
Government.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year the Company has not entered into any contract/arrangement/transaction
with related parties which could be considered material in accordance with the policy of the
Company on materiality of related party transactions. As such disclosures of related party
transactions in Form AOC-2 under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act. 2013 is not required.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

During the period the Company has not given any loans or provided any Guarantees and
Security covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES

The particulars of Subsidiary / Associate of the Company are provided in “Annexure - A”
as required U/s 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-1.

DIRECTORS’” RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
In terms of Section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors state that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the period ended 31t March, 2022, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures, if any;

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the
loss of the Company for that period;

¢) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) the Directors had laid down adequate internal financial controls to be followed by the
Company and such internal financial control are operating effectively; and

f)  the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

LOAN FROM DIRECTORS

The Company has not received any loan from its Directors or their relatives during the period
under review.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

The provision of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 with regards to disclosures on conservation of energy, technology absorption is
not applicable to the Company.

During the period under review there was no foreign exchange earnings or out flow.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review as stipulated under
Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is attached as “Annexure -B”
forming part of the Annual Report.



SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Board has appointed Mankani & Associates, Company Secretaries to carry out the
Secretarial Audit pursuant to the provision of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
for the Financial Year 2021-22. The Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended 31st
March, 2022 annexed as “Annexure - C” and forming part of this report.

ANNUAL EVALUATION BY THE BOARD

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act,2013 and the SEBI Listing
Regulations, the Board of Directors has carried out an Annual Evaluation of its own
performance and performance of Board Committees, Individual Directors, etc., for the year
under review.

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public within the meaning of Section 73
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 and as
such, no amount on account of principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding
as on the date of the balance sheet.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS
AND TRIBUNALS

No significant and material order has been passed by the regulators, courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and Company’s future operations.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statements. Such controls have been tested during the year and no reportable material
weaknesses in design or operation was observed. The Internal Financial Control systems and
procedures and their effectiveness are reviewed and monitored on a regular basis.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is not required to prepare Corporate Governance report Pursuant to
Regulation 34 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

OTHER DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
*  The disclosures and reporting with respect to issue of equity shares with differential
rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise is not applicable as the Company has not

issued any such shares during the reporting period.

*  The disclosures and reporting on issue of shares (including sweat equity shares and
Issue of Shares under Employees Stock Option Scheme) to employees of the Company
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under any scheme are not applicable as the Company has not issued any such shares
during the reporting period.

) There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company
to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

. There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company.

. The company has complied with the applicable provisions of Secretarial Standards SS-
1 and 55-2 with respect to convening of Board Meetings and General Meetings during
the year.

VIGIL MECHANISM

In pursuant to Section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, and SEB(LODR) Regulation,
2015 your company has established a Vigil Mechanism for its directors and employees to
report genuine concern or grievances. The said mechanism encompasses the Whistle Blower
Policy and provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use the
mechanism. It also provides direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in
appropriate and exceptional cases. The concerned employees and the Directors of the
Company are made aware of the said policy from time to time.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility in terms of Sec 135 of the Companies Act
2013 are not applicable to the Company.

LISTING

The fully paid up Equity Shares of the Company are listed on the Calcutta Stock Exchange
Limited (CSE). However, the Company is in the process of delisting of its share from the said
exchange.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has in place an Anti Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements
of The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &Redressal)
Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints
received regarding sexual harassment. During the year no complaints were received by the
company. Incidentally, the Company does not have any regular employee on its role.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company adopted a Code of Conduct as per the Guidelines issued by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India as amended from time to time for prevention of Insider Trading
which is applicable to the members of the Board and all employees in the course of day-to-
day business operations of the Company. The code of conduct framed by the Company has
helped in ensuring compliance with the requirements.



COST RECORDS

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section
148 of Companies Act, 2013 for the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Risk Management is the process of identification, assessment and prioritization of risks
Considering the volume, size and business of the company no major risks have been
identified by the Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Director express their sincere thanks and place on record their deep appreciation of the
valuable support the Company has received from Shareholders, Bankers, Government and
from all concerned.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For CPL Industries Limited

Sd/ Sd/-
Subhankar Banerjee Rangan Dasgupta
Director Director

(DIN: 00137649) (DIN: 00138276)

Place: Kolkata
Date: 28.05.2022

Registered Office:
14, Taratolla Road,
Kolkata — 700088



AOC-1

Annexure-A

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

The Company does not have any subsidiaries.

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Serial No.

1

2. Name of Associate Company

ELISHA INVESTMENTS LIMITED

| 3. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2022
4. No. of Shares of Associate Company held by the Company on the year end 10,99,940
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture 16,41,684

Extend of Holding % 28.20%

Description of how there is significant influence

EQUITY SHARE

8. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated

Consolidated

9. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet 19,30,784
10. Profit/Loss for the year
i. Considered in Consolidation 32,834
ii. Not Considered in Consolidation 83,599
Notes: The Following Information shall be furnished at the end of the statement
1. Names of Subsidiarieswhich are yet to commence operations: N.A
2. Names of Subsidiarieswhich have been liquidated or sold during the year: N.A
By Order of the Board of Directors
For CPL Industries Limited
Sd/- Sd/-
Subhankar Banerjee Rangan Dasgupta
Director Director

(DIN: 00137649) /
Date 28.05.2022
Place: Kolkata

Registered office:
14, Taratolla Road,
Kolkata -700088 West Bengal

(DIN: 00138276}




Annexure ~B
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Management Discussion and Analysis Report
for the year ended on March 31st, 2022.
1. FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This report contains forward-looking statements based on certain assumptions and expectations
of future events. The Company, therefore, cannot guarantee that these assumptions and
expectations are accurate or will be realized. The Company's actual results, performance or
achievements can thus differ materially from those projected in any such forward-looking
statements. The Company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any
forward looking statements, on the basis of any subsequent developments, information or
events.
2. INDUSTRY OPERATIONS, STRUCTURE, DEVELOPMENTS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK
You are aware that the Company is carrying of business in the field of engineering,
procurement and construction for erection of power plant(s) and other infrastructure facilities.
The outlook is favorable for the current account and it's financing. A likely surfeit, rather than
scarcity, of foreign capital will complicate exchange rate management. Risks from a shift in US
monetary policy and turmoil in the Euro zone need to be watched but could remain within
control. Reforms have been initiated in a number of areas and major ones are on the horizon.
The macroeconomic response to the favorable terms of trade shock has led to an appropriately
prudent mix of increased government savings and private consumption. The government has
further decided to address 5 key areas: agricultural income under stress, increasing investment
in infrastructure, decline in manufacturing, and resource crunch in view of higher devolution in
taxes to states while maintaining fiscal discipline. With a view to incentivize investment in
infrastructure, the Budget announced by honorable Finance Minister, Mrs. Nirmala Sitaraman
earlier in the year has proposed a number of welcome measures which would kick-start
investment in infrastructure.

RISKS AND CONCERNS

The followings could be listed as the risk factors w.r.t. EPC Contractors i.e. Engineering,
Procurement and Construction (EPC).

Regulatory and legislative changes and increased cost of compliance.
Volatile technology and prices.

Operational hazards including blowouts, spills and personal injury
Natural disasters and extreme weather conditions.

Inaccurate reserve estimates.

Inadequate liquidity or access to capital, indebtedness.
Environmental or health restrictions and regulations.

General national or global economic concerns.

General competition.

VVVYVYVYVYVYY

By Order of the Board of Directors
For CPL Industries Limited

5d/ 5d/-
Subhankar Banerjee Rangan Dasgupta
Director Director

(DIN: 00137649)  (DIN: 00138276)

Place: Kolkata
Date: 28.05.2022

Registered Office:
14, Taratolla Road,
Kolkata - 700088
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Form No.MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022.

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

M/s CPL Industries Ltd.
14, Taratolla Road,
Kolkata- 700088,

West Bengal, India

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by CPL Industries LTD.’ (CIN:
L74210WB1982PLC035417) (hercinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of CPL Industries Ltd.’, books, papers, minute books, forms
and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2022 complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject
to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by CPL Industries Ltd.’ (“the Company”) for the financial year ended
on 31st March 2022, and made available to me, according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’} and the rules made
thereunder;

(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there
under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and

External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-



Mankani & Associates Continuation Sheet No. 2
Company Secretaries oo B

(vi)

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the company during the audit
period); ;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (Not applicable to the
company during the audit period};;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008 (Not applicable to the company during the audit period);;

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009 /The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of
Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the company during the audit
period); and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2018 (Not applicable to the company during the audit period).

I further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the
Company and on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance
thereof the Company has complied with the following laws applicable specifically to
the Company:

Factories Act, 1948

Payment Of Wages Act, 1936, and rules made thereunder

The Minimum Wages Act, 1948, and rules made thereunder

The Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, and
rules made thereunder.

The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965, and rules made thereunder

Environmental Protection Act 1986

Foreign Currency Act

VVV VVVYVY

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

@)

Amended Secretarial Standard-1 and Secretarial Standard-2 issued by The Institute
of Company Secretaries of India.
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(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above, subject to the
below mentioned observation:

The Company was suspended from CSE and after making necessary application,
CSE has revoked suspension vide its order dated 9 November, 2021.

I further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted, with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors except in
some cases. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place
during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of
the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

During the audit period under review all decisions at Board meeting and Committee
Meeting were carried out unanimously

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period the Company has no specific events/
actions having major bearing the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred
laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc. referred to above.

For, MANKANI & ASSOCIATES
(Company Secretaries)

Digitally signed by
PRlYA PRIYA MANKANI

Date: 2022.05.28
MAN KAN l 13:03:42 +05'30'

PRIYA MANKANI

(Proprietor)

Place: Kolkata C. P. No. 17947
Date: 28t: May, 2022 Membership No. 34744 (A)

1CSI UDIN: A034744D000420536

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as
«ANNEXURE A” and forms an integral part if this report.
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“ANNEXURE A”

The Members,

M/s CPL Industries Ltd.
14, Taratolla Road,
Kolkata- 700088,

West Bengal, India

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial
records. The verification was done on the test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
books of accounts of the Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happenings of events etc.

The compliance of provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management.
Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For, MANKANI & ASSOCIATES
(Company Secretaries)

Digitally signed by
PRIYA PRIYA MANKANI
Date: 2022.05.28
MAN KAN 13:04:29 +05'30'
PRIYA MANKANI
(Proprietor)

Place: Kolkata C. P. No. 17947
Date: 28t May, 2022 Membership No. 34744 (A)

ICSI UDIN: A034744D000420536
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DATTSON & Co. Kolkata - 700 029, Ph. : 033-24642074

Mobile : 62911 51413/ 9088336622
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS e-mail : dattsonandcco2017@gmail.com
dattsonandco@gmail.com

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of M/s. CPL Industries Limited

Report on the Standalone Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of M/s. CPL Industries Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, the Statement of Profit and
Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”} and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its loss, changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We have conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act, Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics, We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance
and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.




Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there Is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance. of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of Directors
are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered rmaterial if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

eldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
invalve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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+Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

sEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting poligies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as,
a going concern,

*Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them ali relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of daing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that;

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account;
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(d) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure
B”.

(e)In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

(f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone
financial statements, if any.

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for
material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts.

2, As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a
statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order.

For Dattson & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Y -'--“"'"-"\Firm Regn. No 311061E

f K kﬂg/fﬁ/
(1
Place: Kolkata O - -'C Subrata Gupta
> > (Partner)
Date: 28" May, 2022 T M. No. 059740

UDIN:22059740AJUIVK3539



ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in Paragraph 2 under the heading of "report on other legal and regulatory
- requirements” of our report of even date)

(1) The company has investments in the body corporate. In our opinion & according to the
information and explanation given to us, the company has not made any investment during
the year under audit.

(ii) According to information and explanations given to us in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed dues, applicable to it
with the appropriate authorities,

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of statutory dues in arrears as at
31 March,2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(iii) The Company has not raised any money through public issues during the year.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us & on the
basis of our audit procedure, the Company has complied with the provisions of section 185
and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and investments made.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(vi) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

(vii) All other clauses of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2020 are not applicable.

For Dattson & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Place: Kolkata

red B (Partner)
Date: 28" May, 2022 M. No. 059740
UDIN:22059740AJUIVK3539



“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting of CPL Industries
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal
Financial Controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the desigr,
implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal Financial Controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the
Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting included obtaining an
understanding of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting. //‘-‘“&“‘




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Dattson & Co.
... Chartered Accountants
& - Firm Registration Number: 0311061E
S

* Icoz.zm'r% ”WM

_ ,(('\ Subrata Gupta

o o’ Partner
Date: 28t May, 2022 U777 Membership No. : 059740
UDIN:22059740AJUIVK3539

Place: Kolkata




CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sthndatone Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2022
(Al in T Rupees, unless oth stated)

Note
n

As
“ 31t Macch 2022

A ut
3lst March 2021

| ASSKETS

Non-curreut assers

Property, plant and equipment

Capital work-in-progzess

Financia) assets
() Investments 2
(i) T.oans

Other non-current asscty

Toral non-current asseta

Current asscts
Inventodes
Financial nssets
{)) Investments
(il) Cash and cash equivalents 3
(iii) Bank balances othex thau (i) above
(iv) Loans
Other current assets 4

. Total current assets

TQTAL ASSETS

Equity and liabilitics

Equity

Bquity share capital 5
Qther equity G

' Total equity

Liabilitics
Noa-current liabilitics
Financial Babilitics
()) Barrowings
Provisiony
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 7
Othex non-curcent liabiliticy
Total uon-cusrent liahilitics

Current liabilitica
linancial liabilities

(i) Trade payables

(i) Other financiat linbilities
Other current liabilitica
Provisiony 9
Total current Kabilites

£

Total labilitics

Total cquity und liabilities

230,805,606

141,564,442

230,805,606

1,564,442

138,181

461,238

138,181

161,238

230,943,787

142,025,680

2,460,500

149,506,000

2,460,500
99,732,400

151,966,590

102,192,900

76,968,347

39,823,930

78,968,347

39,823,930

8,850

8,850

TH,077,197

39,832,780

230,943,787

142,025,680

finencial 5

Jihe aceompanyiog notes § 1w 17 fomm un intepeal pact of these lal
This is the standalone Balance Sheet seferred to in our report of even date
Fot Dattson & Co.

Chasteced Aceouatants

Fian Registation No. 31106112

For and on hehalf of the

Board of Dj

of CPL Ind!

ies Limited

CPL INDUSTRIES LTD,

Subram Gupta
Partner
Membership No. 059740

Place: Kolkata
Date: 28.05.2022
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CPLINDUSTRIKES LIMIT'RD

Standwone Statement of Prolit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022

(AN oot i T Rupees, anloss othewwie stated)

Tocome

Revenue fetmn sceviee
Othes facome

Tatal income

Expeaser

Other expenses
Total expenscs

Profit before tax
Tax expenses

Cutrent tax
Deferred tax

Prien Periend Adjustment

Profit afer 1ax

Other campeehensive income:
(8) Ttemia that will riot be reclasalfled subacqueally v profit or loes:
(® Changes in faie value of equity wnstruments

(i) Tax selating to this ic

Tatel other comprehengive income for the yeur, net of tux
Total comprehensive incurne: for the yeur

Bamingy pes cquity share
Basic aud diluied ennnings pee siare

The accompanying notss | m 17 foen an bl part ol these syl Busneial geatcments
—-—-EL'.EJ_____-—....._EL_I_._——-—-—-»-——_..___.__,_,___

Year eaded Yearemded
—Notes 31Maech 2022 N Musch20H
10 SHe8 24505
T 24,597
——— e S
I . Azao2s IUI&(O
J3gms 101,410
(323,057) (7,01)
12

(423,05 {77073
89,241,164 63,259,654

. Vagsag -

0,090,707 o
- W.??.hfuuﬂ 1.\:1mv,1ns
13 [(R])] 031)

This is the. standalonc Statement of Troli and Luss refornd W in our seport of even dato,

For Dattron & Co
Chaner:d Acconntants
Finn Registration No. 3111

Subreta Gupta
Pertnec
Membership No 059740

Place: Koliam
Dare: 2603 2022

Foacand on behalf of the
Board of Ditcetor of CPL. Indusifies Limiwd

CPL INDUSTRIES LTD,
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CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March 2022

(AN wmiant in T Rupeas, unloss otherwise sluted)

A, Cauh flow feom uperating activities:
Profit before tax
Prior Pedod Adjusunent

Operuting profit before. working capital changes:
Adjustmeat for:

(Increasc) / dec in other non-fi vt ayguts
(Dacsesac) lurcae in ceato papatiles

Inceease / (decrease) in provisions

(Dccrense) in other Ginancisl Kabilities

Incresse ia other avn-finuncial habilies

Cash gencrated from aperations

Income taxe paid (et of exfind)

Ne¢ cash i from ay e

B. Cavh flow from invcillug activities
Net cash generated from / {used in) investing uctivitica
C. Caeh flow from financing uctivitien

Nee cash (used in) financing nctivitics

Net increune /{decronnc) in cash and eashy wipuivalons
Casb and cash equivilents sy at the eginning of the year
Curh and cash equivalents as af the a1 of the year

Nures:

Vear ended Year ended

3t March 2022 31s¢ March 2021

(323,057) @7,013)

B 7Y ) N ,00)

L iwmasy Gy

® (325,057) (72.083)
(B) N A x

© D e

(A+B+C) (323,057) (17.013)

61,238 538,251

uBisl T aGiaas

i) ‘The above Standalone Starement of Cash Lows has been erepaced under the 'Indirect Mothad' as set out in Ind AS 7, "Stucvment of Cash

Paws",

W) Reconcliation beiwaen v Upesing did lsing binknces in the Babae Sheor far Iitnititics s igs Trum Ginaacial sctividics aie o uodee:

Particulurs

Balance as on
3lst March 2021

Balance g ¢n
3lsr March 2022

1 ong temn bormowing: N
Taral liabilitics fram financing wetiviies
e — IO HIOONCING A4 -

W) Cnsh wnd ensh equivaleats camptises oft
Cash on hany
Balances with banks
- I curcent accaunts
Bank deposite

"This is the standalone Balance Shewe rofiered 1o in ouc teport af oven date.

lor Dateon & Co.
Chartered] Accountanis

e Reggstmti L TGN =57
Fimm Regrsumtion No, 3 uﬁ;?,(:;”r

Subeata Gupre:
Tactner
Mumbeuship No. 059740

Pluce: Kalkata
Dare: 28.05.2022

Avat As

3ot Murch 2022 31wt Macch 2021
———

480 48y
1370m 52,134
o A624
138,181 461,238

For and on Lehalf of the
Doard of Dirsetor of CPI, Tadustries Limited

CPL INDUSTRIES LTD.
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CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amount in T Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

a. Background

CPL Industries Limited ("the Company") is a Public Limited Company incorporated under the Companies Act,
1956 & having its registered office in Kolkata, India. The Company is engaged in the business ofOther support
services to organizations. The CIN of the Company is L74210WB1982PLC035417.

b. Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind ASs)

notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. These financial statements have also been prepared in
accordance with the relevant presentation requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company adopted Ind AS
from 01 April 2018.

Up to the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with the
requirements of previous Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), which includes Standards notified under
the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. These are the Company's first Ind AS financial statements. The
date of transition to Ind AS is 01 April 2017. Details of the exceptions and optional exemptions availed by the
Company and principal adjustments along with related reconciliations are detailed in page no.25 - First-time
Adoption of Ind AS.

¢. Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, except for certain

items that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 17 - Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 - Inventories or value in use in Ind AS 36 -
Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3

based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

* Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Company can access at the measurement date;

* Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets
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and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period; they are recognised
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per Company's normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule Ill to the Companies Act 2013 and Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial
Statements based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their

realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

d. Revenue recognition
Revenue from services is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for services

rendered in the periods in which the services are rendered on a prorated basis over the period or as per the terms
of the contract.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive dividend has been
established.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

e. Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation

and impairment, if any. For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost which represents the carrying value of property,
plant and equipment recognised as at 01 April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP.

Cost is inclusive of inward freight, duties and taxes and incidental expenses related to acquisition. In respect

of major projects involving construction, related pre-operational expenses form part of the value of assets
capitalised. Expenses capitalised also include applicable borrowing costs for qualifying assets, if any. All upgradation
/ enhancements are charged off as revenue expenditure unless they bring similar significant additional benefits.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment has been provided on the straight-line method as per the useful
life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits

are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit and Loss.

f. Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
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When it is not possiBIe to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of

future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in

the statement of profit and loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU} is increased to

the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or CGU) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in statement of profit and lgss.

g. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash-on-hand, current account bank balances and demand deposits

with banks, having original maturity less than three months.

h. Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which

are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are

incurred.

i. Employee benefits
There are no employees on the rolls of the Company.

j. Taxation
Tax expenses comprises current and deferred tax.

Current tax
Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax

Act, 1961. The Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted during the
period, together with any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Current tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in

the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that tax‘gn_glg_gmfits will be




available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to

be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Income tax, in so far as it relates to items disclosed under other comprehensive income or equity, are
disclosed separately under other comprehensive income or equity, as applicable.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances related to the same taxation authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit entitlement is recognised only to the extent there is convincing evidence

that the Company will pay normal tax during the period specified by the income Tax Act, 1961. In the year in which
the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset, the said asset is created by way of credit to the
statement of profit and loss. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the
carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the
Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

k. Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Company recognises a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of an obligating event that
probably requires outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When
some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of
the receivable can be measured reliably. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of

money is material).

A disclosure of a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that

may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible

obligation or a present obligation and the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure
of contingent liability is made.

|. Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker (CODM). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors.

Segments are organised based on business which have similar economic characteristics as well as exhibit
similarities in nature of products and services offered, the nature of production processes, the type and class of
customer and distribution methods.

Segment revenue arising from third party customers is reported on the same basis as revenue in the financial
statements. Inter-segment revenue is reported on the basis of transactions which are primarily market led. Segment

results represent profits before finance charges, unallocated expenses and taxes. -
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"Unallocated Expenses” represents revenue and expenses attributable to the enterprise as a whole and are not

attributable to segments.

m. Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability

or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are

initially measured at fair value.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through statement of profit and loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit and loss are recognised immediately in profit and loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is included in the balance sheet where there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

n. Financial assets
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.

Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by reguiation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair
value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Recognition
Financial assets include investments, trade receivables, derivative instruments, cash and cash equivalents,

other bank balances, loans and other financial assets. Such assets are initially recognised at transaction price
when the Company becomes party to contractua! obligations. The transaction price includes transaction costs
unless the asset is being fair valued through the statement of profit and loss.

Classification
Management determines the classification of an asset at initial recognition depending on the purpose for

which the assets were acquired. The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on such classification.

Financial assets are classified as those measured at:

(a) Amortised cost, where the financial assets are held solely for collection of cash flows arising from

payments of principal and / or interest.

(b) Fair value through other comprehensive income, where the financial assets are held not only for collection

of cash flows arising from payments of principal and interest but also from the sale of such assets. Such assets are

subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value being

recognised in other comprehensive income.

(c) Fair value through statement of profit and loss, where the assets are managed in accordance with an

approved investment strategy that triggers purchase and sale decisions based on their fair value of such assets.

Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains and losses aris‘i!{QQfaéé-i‘.chqnges in the
!_f _m:\. 5 e ),l}\
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fair value being recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they arise.

Trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loans and other financial assets are classified for measurement

at amortised cost. Investments may fall under any of the aforesaid classes. However, in respect of particular
investments in equity instruments that would otherwise be measured at fair value through profit and loss, an
irrevocable election at initial recognition have been made to present subsequent changes in fair value through other

comprehensive income.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest
method. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of an instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Impairment

At each reporting date a financial asset such as investment, trade receivable, loans and other financial assets

held at amortised cost and financial assets that are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
are tested for impairment based on evidence or information that is available without undue cost or effort. Expected
credit loss is assessed and loss allowance is recognised if the credit quality of that financial asset has deteriorated
significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount
of the assets. For debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive income, the loss allowance is
recognised in other comprehensive income and is not reduced from the carrying amount of the financial asset in the

balance sheet.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there

is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the trade
receivable does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Company's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made
are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Reclassification

When and only when the business model is changed the Company shall reclassify all affected financial assets
prospectively from the reclassification date as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income, fair value through statement of profit and loss without restating the previously recognised
gains, losses or interest and in terms of the reclassification principles laid down in the Ind AS relating to Financial
instruments.

De-recognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the right to receive cash flows from the assets has expired, or has been
transferred, and the Company has transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership. Consequently,
if the asset is one that is measured at

(a) Amortised cost, the gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

(b) Fair value through other comprehensive income, the cumulative fair value adjustments previously taken to
reserves are reclassified to the statement of profit and loss unless the asset represents an equity investment in
which case the cumulative fair value adjustments previously taken to reserves is reclassified within equity.
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o. Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification:
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in

accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting

all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a company are recognised at the proceeds received.

Financial liabilities
Borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are initially recognised at the value of the respective

contractual obligations. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any discount or premium on
redemption / settlement is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as finance cost over the life of the liability
using the effective interest method and adjusted to the liability figure disclosed in the balance sheet.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is, when the contractual obligation
is discharged, cancelled and on expiry.

p. Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit and loss for the year attributable to shareholders

by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted
earnings per share, the profit and loss for the year attributable to shareholders and weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential shares

2A. USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the
reporting period end. Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current events and
actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

In particular, information about the significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements are related to:

(i) Useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
(i) Fair value of financial assets / liabilities
(iii) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

As described in the significant accounting policies, the Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each reporting period. The Company is required to
determine whether its intangible assets have indefinite or finite life which is a subject matter of judgement.
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Fair value measurements and valuation processes
Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In

estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company engages third party qualified valuers to perform the

valuation, if required.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Company has ongoing litigations with various regulatory authorities and third parties. Where an outflow

of funds is believed to be probable and a reliable estimate of the outcome of the dispute can be made based on
management's assessment of specific circumstances of each dispute and relevant external advice, management
provides for its best estimate of the liability. Such accruals are by nature complex and can take number of years to

resolve and can involve estimation uncertainty.

2B. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS:

Ind AS 21 - The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

On 28 March 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified the Companies {Indian Accounting

Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS 21 - The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income, when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a
foreign currency. This amendment will come into force from 01 April 2018. The Company has evaluated the effect of

this on the financial statements and the impact is not material.

Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contract with Customers

On 28 March 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified the Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contract

with Customers. The core principle of the new standard is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the
transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Further the new standard requires enhanced
disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity's
contracts with customers. The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 115 is financial periods beginning on or after 01
April 2018. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 on the financial statements is expected to be insignificant.
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CPL INDUSTRIXS LIMITED
Notes to standalone financial statements fox the year ended 31st March 2022

(Al amount in T Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

3 Cash and bank balances
(a) Cash and cash cquivalents
Cash on bhand
Balances with banks

- In curtent accounts
Fixed Deposit in Bank

(b) Other bank balances

4 Other asscts

(a) Non-current

Current
(Unisecured, considervd gooel)
Balances with government authoritics (#%)

®

~

As at
31st March 2022

As at
31st March 2021

480 480
137,701 52,134
408,624
B 138,181 461,238

Balances wilh government authorities primarily include amounts realisable from Income Tax authotities. These are expected to be realised within a

(**) period of one-year. Accordingly these balances have been classified as current assets.
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CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022
(All amount in ¥ Rupees, unless otherwise stated) |

Year ended Year ended
31st March 31st March

2022 2021
10 Other Income
Tnterest Income 5,868 24,597
5,868 24,597
11 Other expenses
Bank Charges 25
Filling Fees 16,350 3,000
Demat Charges 2,192 600
General Expenses 590
Annual Custody Fees(NSDL) 29,795
Professional Fecs 2,360 13,500
Professional Tax 2,500 2,500
Auditor's remuneration (refet note (a) below) 37,170 23,010
Listing Fees 29,500 29,500
RTA Charges 3,443
Accounting Charges 29,500
Secreterial Audit Fees 10,000
Salaty (Staff) 195,000
328,925 101,610
(a) Auditor's temuneration
Statutory Audit Fees 8,850 8,850
Other Audit Fees 28,320 14,160
37,170 23,010
. 05‘.:? Rigg
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CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to standalone financial statements for the ycar ended 315t March 2022
(All amount in T Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

12 Tax expense

(a)

®

i)

Current tax
Deferred tax

Prior Period Adjustment

Deferred tax on fair value gains on investments in equity instruments through OCI

13 Earnings per equity share (EPS)

Net Profit before Dividend

Net profit attributable to equity sharcholders
Number of cquity shares outstanding during the year

Face value per share
Farnings per share
- Basic earnings per equity share
- Diluted camings per equity share

14 Related party disclosures

Income tax in the statement of profit and loss:

Income tax recognised in other comprchensive income compriges:

Information on related party transactions as required by Ind AS - 24 - Related Party Disclosures for the year

ended 31 March 2022
List of related Party

Associates

Namc of the Company
Elisba Investments Limited

Transactions with related parties
Particulars

Year ended Year ended
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
39,144 417 19,973,426
39,144,417 19,973,426
(323,057) (77,013)
246,050 246,050
10 10
(1.31) (0.31)
1.31) 0.31)
Percentage of holding
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
28.20% 28.20%
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

No rclated party transactions are there.
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(1) Category wire classifigadion of*

ir value ieasurement

Linstrum

Ay ut Aot

Prtienlues
st Murch 2022 S Mareh 2620

i) Measured at Ruir value through profit or loss (V1L

3

(x

(
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of M/s. CPL Industries Limited

Report on the Consolidated Indlan Accounting Standards (ind AS) Financlal Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of M/s. CPL Industries Limited
(“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary (collectively referred to as “the Company” or “the Group”),
which comprise the Consolidated Balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income} and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its consolidated loss and
total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We have conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the consolidated financial statements.

information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,




Board’s Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate
Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the consolidated financial statements

and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance concluslon thereon.

in connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, total comprehensive
income, changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the group in accordance with the Ind AS and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records In accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of Directors are responsible
for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic declsions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:




eldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud Is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, intentional omlssions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

*Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Group has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtalned up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as, a
going concern. _

sEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1, As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

{(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.




(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive income, Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity and the Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account;

(d) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”,

{e)In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

(f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its consolidated
financial statements, if any.

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for
material foreseeable losses, If any, on long-term contracts.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a
statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order.

For Dattson & Co.
Chartered Accountants
/.* «E)f\I < Firm Regn. No 311061E
£ :)‘_
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)Kg‘kata 29 %Jkﬁ

o rGA Subrata Gupta
R (Partner)
Date: 28" May, 2022 = =" M. No. 059740

Place: Kolkata

UDIN:22059740AKMYEZ1802



ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in Paragraph 2 under the heading of "report on other legal and regulatory
requirements" of our report of even date)

xxi. There have no qualification or adverse remark passed by the respective auditors in the
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies and not included in
the consolidated financial statements.

All other clauses of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2020 are not applicable.

For Dattson & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No 3119§1E

\ql} CA. Subrata Gupta
NI A0t (Partner)
Date: 28" May, 2022 B M. No. 059740

Place: Kolkata

UDIN:22059740AKMYEZ1802



“Annexure B:” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting of CPL Industries
Limited (“the Holding Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company which
is incorporated in India, for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Holding Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintdining Internal
Financial Controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal Financial Controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the
Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,to the extent
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
intenal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting included obtaining an
understanding of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. Py A
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Holding Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India, have, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting were operating effectively as at March
31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Dattson & Co.
Chartered Accountants
\\ Firm Reglstratlon Number: 0311061E

Place: Kolkata CA. Subrata Gupta
= Partner
Date: 28" May, 2022 Membership No. : 059740

UDIN: 22059740AKMYEZ1802



CPL INDUSTRIRS LIMITED
Consolidated Staterment of Profis and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amount in ¢ Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Your ended Year cnded
Notes 31 Mareh 2022 31 Mareh 2021

Income

Revenue feom seevice . x

Othet Income 10 231,620 249,155

Toral income 237,629 249,155

Expenscs i

Other expenses 1 405,253 144,080

Tatal expenucs 405,253 134,080

—— U0

Profit before tax (167,624) 105,075

Tax expenses

Current tax 12 39,000 46,280

Defecced tax -

Proe Pedod Adjustment 47
B0 gram

————
Profit afrer cax (206,624) 58,048

Less: Int of Holding Co pany & Others 148,356) 11,678

(58,263) 16,570

Other comprehensive Income;
() Teemu thar will wat e rechssified subsequently 16 profic or lass:

(i) Changes in faie value of equity msiiments 89,211,773 63,228,208

() Tax relating to this item 3809,340 19,152,463

‘Tot! other com pretiensive income for the Ycar, net of x 50,204,433 43,475,745

Less: Intereat of Holding Company & Others 36,111 403 31,215,585

—_ L215,585

14,183,030 12,260,160

Total comprehensive Income for the ycar 5n,mﬁ9 4:1:5«]3,?93
Bamiogs per cquity share

Hasic and dilured camings per shace 0.34) 0.24

The accompanying notes 1 to 17 focn an inteprl nurt of these Congolidaied finangial suenon s,
——=Acrainpanying A——-—-—-—__________—__.._,-—-———-._____,___

Thi iy the Consolidated Bulance: Sheet tefureed 16 in our Teport of even date.

Ifar and on behall of the Bonal of
For, Dattgon & Co. irector of €1, Tndustrics 1imired
Chactered Accounirants
Hirm Registeation No. 031106112

-

CA Subrata Gy,
Parlner

1}
I Subilankar Banbdjee Remgean Dnfihps T
Mesmbecship No. 059740 JETRIES LTD.

a&grkmt . 'D:Vﬁ-’dvp {*’k
¥

Dircetor Directos ) kL BN

‘:5“»‘. &4 DIN: 00137649 IN: 00135276

\\-‘f._"‘_".j-,-f’ N Agatroal
Place: Kolkata . = A ad bt kq 3(
Date: 26.05.2022 COMPANY SECRETARY
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CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Consolidated Balaves Shoer as 22 31 March 2022
(Al aoount in ¥ Rupees, unlesy othenwise statecl)

" Asar AS AT

YOTES  simmmcasvza st MARCH 2021
ASSETS ’
Non-cureent assets
Intangible Assct
Goodwill 4,309,000 4,309,000
Jiinancial asgets
(i) Tavestments 2 229,263,922 139,952,150
(i) Loans
Odier non-current nsscts
Total non-cusrent agscts 233,572,012 144,261,150
Curtent assets
laventodes
Financial assets
(i) Investments
({) Cash and eash cejuivalents Jda 1420 1,420
(iii) Bank balances other than (i) above 3a 5,080,696 4,896,455
(v) Trade Recvivables 3n 1,800,000 2,300,000
Other current wssees 4 05,949 a7 4813
Total current agsets 6,978,065 ?.245.61&_‘_
TOTAL ASSETS 240,530,087 151,506,838
Equity and linbilities
Equity
Equity shate capital 5 2,460,500 2,460,500
Otlicr equity 6 155,328,646 105,092,481
Interese of Holding Company & Otliera 4,136,401 4,261,757
T : ‘_-"_"_""_——'————_—-7-——__.
Fonal equity 161,925,547 . m.ss?,?.l_s_‘
Liabilities
Non-cusrent liabilities
Financial liabilitice
() Borrowings
Provisions
Deferted tax lighilities {net) 7 78,522,460 39,605,120
Other nou-current liabilitics - o
Total non-current liabilitieg 78,522,460 39,605,120
— 39,605,120
Current liabiliticy
Financial liabilities
() "Tradle payablcs
(i) Other Financial libilities
Other current liabilities 8 17,200 12,700
Pravisians 9 85,280 46,280
‘Total currcat Liabilitles 102,980 6,980
Total libilities 78,625,440 39,669,100
* » 0 “__‘-'_-__‘________"""’_
‘Total equity and liabilities 240,550,987 151,506,838
The sccompanying notes 1 to 17 form an integeal pust of these € lictated Ginancial statements.
This is the Consolidated Balanec Sheet referred to in our report of even date,
Fur Dattson & Co. o For and on behalf of the Board of
Chastered Accountants SEAy) N ‘é‘*\ Directon of CPLL Industries Limiied
Fiem Regineanion No. 03110611 TNLO
= O\
YAy "
CA Subrata Gup) Kotkata-29 :‘:,) )
Partaer & (RPN NN
Membership No. 059740 S \@;:é’ Sl W\ Raagan I? iy
! A c_E?‘,://’ Dircerur Dicector W
Mace: Kolkara e THN: 00137649 DIN: 00138276
Dnte: 28.05,2022
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CPLINDUSTRIES LIMITED

C lidated Stat of Cach Flows for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amount in ¥ Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

A.  Cash flow from operating activitica:

Profit before tax
Prior Period Adjustment

Operatlng profit before working capital changes:

Adjustment for:

Taxatlon

Trade Receivables

Other Current Liabilities

Short Term Loans & Advances

Increase in other non-financial liabilities
Cash generated from operations

Incomne taxes paid (net of refund)
Net cash generated from operadag activitdes

B. Cash flow from investing activities

Net cash generared from / (used in) investing activitics

C. Cash flow from finaacing activitice

Net cash (used in) financing activides

Net inccease /(deceease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cush equivaleits as at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the years

Notes:

i) The nbove Consolidated Statement of Cash F

I*hesws™,

This is the Consolidated Statcment of Gash Flows referced to in due report of even date,

For Dattson & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 0311061E /.“4 i t-.ON

—

e Yo
*
CA Subrata Gupta ;3
Pattner 3

Membership No, 059740

Place; Kolkata
Date: 28.05.2022

\.'

« L INDUSTRIES LTD.
Atshuika ﬂ*éawtfwtl

COMPANTY SECRETARY

Kolkala- 29

Yeac ended Year ecnded
31 Maxch 2022 31 March 2021
(167,624) 105,075
747
(167,624) 105,822
{39,000) (47,027)
500,000 600,000
39,000 26,230
48,136 (28.126)
380,512 656,899
(74°7)
380,512 656,152
(100,000)
(100,000) -
280,512, 656,152
4,897,875 4,241,723
5,178,387 4,897,875

lows has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' ag set out in [nd AS 7, "Statement of Cash

For and on hehalf of the Board of
Director of CPL Industries Limited

%

WL Pt !
Rangy I)Iapup:‘h‘l{\},\
Direet

DIN: 00138276
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CPLINDUSTRIES LIMITED
S y ol signi ing policica and nther explanatory informetion period ending on 318T March 2022

(AL amount in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Background
CPL Industrles Limited ("the Carmpany") is a Public Limited Company incorparated under the Companies Act,
1956 & having Its registered olfica in Kulkata, India. The Company is angaged in the business of contractual
service. The CIN of the Company is L74210WB1982P1C035417.

| Group's background
‘Ihe consolidsted financial statements comprise the financial statements of CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED ('the one of the Parent Company) and other cornpany
name :M/s Zenith Investments Tid &.it's subsidiary (collectively, the Group) for the year ended 31 March 2022

The Parent is 2 Company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Tndia. The registered office af the Parau Company is Jucated at 14 Tacalala Road, Kolkata -

700088, Tndia
The subsidiary company is as fullows:

ibaidi ) N . N Percentage Iluldjng as on
Name of the subsidiary Countey of incorpornrion 31 March 2022
Blisha Iivestments Limited Tndia 28 20% ]
“The otlber Tagent .‘-mqun)';::l- aratidd absncy Tiodehig == = o
b

. N Percentage holdiog as on

Name of the Company Countsy of incocporstion 31 March 2022
Zaih Investments Limited India .79%

The Group is primarily engaged in the business of other services

Thesc ¢ lidated financial st s are apf d by the Parent Company's Board uf Directors on 20.05.2022
Basis of preparation:
(a) Geacral infc ion and of pli with Indian A ing Standard
These financial are the consolidated financial of the Group prepared in accordance with [ndian Accounting Sravdards (‘Ind AS) notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with the Companies (Indian Ac ing Standards) Rules, 2015,

The Consolidated financial stateraents comply in all material aspects with Tndian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notificd under Section 133 of the Companics Act,
2013 (hercinafter ceferred o as the “Act’) read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as wuended rom ime to time and other
relevant provisions of the Act.
Ilistorical Cost Coavention

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on 4 historical cost basis, except investment other than investment in subsidianes, which is measured at Pair value

A ing eati and judg

Preg of consolidated financial requires the use of judi 3 and ptions in the application of accounting palicies that affects the
reported amount of assets, liabilitics, income and expenses. Actual results may dilTer from these esli Continuaus cval of such esti and judg are
done based on histarical experience and other faciors, including future expectations that are believed to be Lle. Revisions 1o ing est are

recognised prospectively.

Delails of critical estimates and judgments used which have a significant effect on the carrying amounts of assels and liabilitics, are pravided in 1he following nates:
Income tax:

The Parent’s tax jurisdiction is India Significant judgements ace involved in estimating budgeted profies for the purpuse of paying advace lux, determining the
provision fot income taxes, including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertan tax posinons,

Usefil life of propesty, plaot and cg
The Group has no asset under this head.

A ing est and j
JTmpainuent of axwcts:
Refernote 2 (b), () and (d) for details,

E. o
ofp

Weler nute 2gph lor detuk

Recognition of deferred tax assets:

Refer note 2 (h) for details

Hule value tieunueemients:

When he fair values of financials assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Slicer cannot he measuced based on quoled pices in actve mackets, their far
value is measured wsing valuation techniques, including the discounted cash flow madel, which invalve varous judgements and assumptions.

aod

"The Group presents all its assets and labilities i e Balance Sheet based on cucrent or non—<current classification. Assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-
cwrrent as per the Group's notmal opetating cycle and other critena as set out in the Division {1 of Sthedule 11 1o the Companies Act, 2013 Dased on the naure of
praducts and the lime between acquisition of wssets for processing and their eealization in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has ascertuined its operating cycle as
12 months for the purpose of current or non-cucrent classification of assets and liabilities. Defencd tax assis and liahilitics ate classified as non-current assets and non
current liabilities, as the case may be

(b) Receni accounting pronovncementy
Ministry of Cotporatc Affairs vide notification dared 28 March 2018, has issued the Companies (Indian Atcountmy Standards) Amendments Rules, 2018, These
amended rules ace effective from 1 April 2018,

Ind AS 115, R from with
With the notification of Ind AS 115, Ind AS 1R - Revcnue has Lieen ithdrawn from the fnancial yeur beginning 1 Apal 2018 onwards and consequential amendments
have also been made in other standards.

Ind AS 115 promotes to ercate a single model foc eevenuc recognition for contracts. Tt applies to most revenie arvangements. Amang, other things, it changes the
crileria for determining whether tevenue is tecognised at a point in time or over time. It provides a new contract-based five-step revenue model for revenue
recognition and measurement. Ind AS 115 provides more detiited guidance on specific topics whete existing revenue standard Ind AS 18 is lacking such as multiple
ideration, sale with u dight to retum, licensing arangements ete, ‘The Group is evaluating the requi of the d and
its impact an the financial satements.

element amang; , variahle
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Basis of consolidation

The cansolidated financial statements camprise the financial skaterents of the Parent Company and its subsidiary. Caniral is achicved when the Parent Company |

- Ponwer over the investee

- Is exposed oc has rights to vanable retums from its involvement with the iwvestee; and

- Tlas the ability to use it's power over the nvestee ta afect its remims.

Geneally, thete is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in conteol. “Tu suppoit Ghis presumption and when the Patent Company has less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Parent Company considers all relevant Facts wnd circumstiuces i ussessing whether it has power over an
mvestee, including:

-‘Thie contractual arrangement with the olher vote holders of the investec;

- Righis arising from other contractual amngeincents;

- The Pavent Company's voting nights and polential votng righ
e size ol the Parent Company's hiolding of voting rights rclative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the ather voting tight holders

wl

"The Tarent Company re-assesses whether or not it controls an invesice if facts and ciccumstances indicate that there are changes to onc or more of the theee elerments
of conuol. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Tarent Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ccases when the Parent Campany lascs control of
the subsidiuy. Assets, hubihties, wiconmne ad expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from
the: date the Pasent Company yains control untl the date the Parent Cumpiuty ceanses to contral the subsiduary.

Cunsuliduted Gnancial statements ate prepared using unilorm accounting policies for like transactions and other cvents in simitar ciccumstances. [f 4 member of the
Group uscs accounting policics olhec than those adopted in the consolidated financial for ke transactions and events n similar ciccunstances, appropyiale
adjusements arc made to that Group member’s [inancial statements in preparing the cansolidated financial sratemenis ta ensuee conformity with the Group’s

accounting policies.

"The financial statements of the subsidiaty company used for the purpose of consolidation is drwn up to same reporting dare as that of the Parent Company, ¢, year
ended on 31 Masrch. When (he end of the reporting period of the Parent Company is different from ihar of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation
purposes, additional tinmcial information as of the sane date as the financial statements of the Paeat Company o enable the Parent Company (o consalidate the
financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable o do so.

Cousolidation procedure:
Combine like itlems of assets, liabiliues, cquit

wcome, expenses and cash flows of the Parent Company with those of its subsidiary, Faor this purpose, income and
expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recagpused in the consolidated financial statenents ut de acquisi

idon datc.

Offset (climinate) the carrying amount of the Pasenl Company’s investment in the subsidiary and the Parent Company's portion of cquity of the subsidiay. Business
combinations pohcy explains how to account for any related goodwil)

iminate i full uitragroup asscts and liabilitics, equity, income, expenses and cash Mlows relating ta transactions herweea entities of the Graup {profis or losses
resulting (rom ntragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assels, ace climinated in Rll). Intagroup losses may indicate an
impairowent. that reguices recopnition in die consolidated fuscial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Faxcs applies to temporary differences that arise fram the elimination
ol prolits and losses resulting trom intragroup ransactions

1 component ot oiher comprehensive nicame (OCI) are atinbuted 1w e equity laldas of the Pacent Conpany and 1o the nun-conteolling
cial statements of e

Profit or loss and
intexests, even if this resulrs in the non-controlling iniceests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments ace wade ro the fin
subsidiny to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policics. All intra-gionp assers and liabilitics, equity, income, expenses and cash Hows
velating to transactions between members of the Group ace climinated in full on consolidati

Significant accountng policies

Revenue recognilion

Revenue s measured at the Gur vidue of e consideration received o receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of 1elums, trade allowances, rebates, goods and
ce tax and amounts collecred on behalf of third parties.

sery

The Group recopnises revenue when the amaunt of revenue can e celiably measueed, it i probable that (e econosmic benefits will flow 1o the eatity and specific
imaies on hislorical vesults, taking, into consideration the type of

criteria have been rnet for vach of the Group's achivitics as descnbed below, The Group bases its
customner, the type of tansaction and the specifics oF cach weangemnent.

Sale of scrvices:
Revenue is vecugnised on delivecy of setvices Lo the customer, in accardance wilhy the tecms of sale.

Interest income;
Interest income is recorded on accrual basis using the effective inferest rute (EIR) inethod

Dividend income:
Diviclend income: is recognised when the right 1o receive dividend s established.

Tmpainnent of nun-financial assets

Assessment tor impairment is done at cach Balwice Sheet date when theve is i andication that a non-hinaneal asser may be immpaired, For the purpose of assessing
impairtnent, smallest identifiable proup of assers thar genevates cash inflows (rom conlinuing, use Ut are largely mdependent af the cash wllows from other
assets/proups of ussets is considercd as a cash generating unit If any indicaion of impaimment exisis, an estimate af’ the recoveiable amounr of the ndividual
asset/cash generating unit is made Asset/cash generating unit whose carrying value exceeds their recoverable amount are wiitten down to the recoverable amount by
recognizing the impainuent loss s an expense in e Statement of Profit and Joss Kecoverable wmownt 1s higher of an asser's/cash genecating unit's Gair value less
cost of disposal and i1s value in use. Value in use is the present value of cstimated future cash flows expected 1w adse Gor
gencrating unit and from its disposal at the end of its usefisl Tife. Assessment is also dane at each Balance Sheet date a5 to whether there is any indication that an
impairment loss recognised for an asset/cash generating unit in any prior sccounting periods may no longer exist or may have decreased, based on which a reversal of
an carlier recorded impainnent Joss 1s recognised in the consalidated Statement of Profit and Loss,

the continuing usc of an asset/cash

Financial instruments

Clagsificarion:

“(he Group chassifies its furancial assets in the following measniement categories depending on the Group's business madel for inanaging such financial assers and the
contractual cash flow wans of the asser.

drose to be mensured subsequently at Fur value (either iheough other compeeliensive incume, or dicoagh peolit oc loss), and

those subsequently measuced at amortised cost

1 Income.

For assets ieasured st fan value, gins or losses are cidiee tecorded in the consalidated Statement of Profil suid Loss or Other Comp
in debi insreuments, if any, are classified depending an the business model managing such vestmeats. The Group ce-chssifies the debt investents when and only
when there is 4 change in business madel for tmanaging those assels, Far investmears in equily instruments whicl ace not held for teading, the Graup lvas made wn
ircevocable clection at the time of initial recognition to account for such equity investments at fair vidue threugh Other Comprehensive Incame.
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Measurement:

At itial recognition, the Group inessures a financial :
dirccdly artribuble to the acquisition of the fnancial asset, Transaclion custs of financial ussets camied at far value throuph profit or loss
consolidated Sratement of Profirand I oss as and when they are incurred.

:t (othee than those carried at fair value Uirough profit or less) at its fair value plus transaction costs that arc
expensed in the

Debt instruments
Subscquent measurement of debr instruments depends on the Group's business model managwng such debt instruments and the contractual cash flow charueteristics

of the instrument. There are three measurement categories into which the debr instruments are classified:

Amortised cost: Rusiness model managing such assct has the objective to realise the contractual easl Anws arising, from 1he asser by holdung such asset and the

contractual cash flows represent solely paytents of principal and interest on the outstanding amount of principal, mcasured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a
recopmsed i (he consolidated Staternent of Peofit or Loss when the asset is de-recognised ov impaited

financial asset subsequently ineasured at wnortised Lost

Fair value through other comprebeusive income (FVOCLy: Business model munaging such asset hus the objective Lo collect the contractual cash Mows arising
from such asset and ta sale the asser, where such contiachnl cash flows cepresent solcly payments of principal and interest on the outstanding amount of principal,
measured at fric value thraugh other comprehiensive income (FVQCIH. Changes in far vahic of such insruments arc recognised throuph OCI, except for the
cecognition of impaitment gans ot losses, iterest incore and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in the consdlidated Stcement of Trofit and
Loss. When the financial assct is de-cecagnised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised u OCH s reckssified (tom equily ro consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss and recognised in aiher income.

Fair value through profit or loss (FV'IPL): Assets hat Ju not ineet the criteria fou amottised cost or FYOC! are measured at faic value through profit ar loss. A
gain ot loss on a debr investment that is subsequently measured ar fair value through profit or loss is recogpised u Statement ol Profil and Loss in Lhe period in which

Hanses.

Equity instruments:
‘The Group classifies all its cquity invesuuvunts, if any, at fair value apart (rom investment in subsidiary,
managemen! has made an ircevacable clection 10 present fair value gains and losses on such equity instruments i other compreliensive income and there s no

subsequent reclassification af fair value gains and losses to the statement of peofivand loss

In case of equity instruments not held for trading, Group's

Invesiunents in mutval funds:
, if any, are measuced ar fur va

Investments in sha throuph profitand loss,

Inipaicment:

The Group assesses the expected credit losses for its financial assets at wnortsed cost and FYIOCH debt i Impaicrnent
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and the loss amount assessed depends upon past events, present conditions and futuce economit scenario.

ol

applied depends on

For trade reccivables only, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 which requires loss allowance to be vecngised at an amount equivalent
10 the lifetime espected credit losses from the initial recognition of such receivables ircespective of whether there has heen a significant increase in credit risk

De-recognition:

A financial asset is de-recognised when:

Contraciual fight to receive cash flows fram such financial assel expires;

Gruup translees e conixaclual 1ight to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or

Group retains the right to receive the contractual cash flows fram the financial asset, but assumes a contraciual obligation to pay such cash flows to one or more
Tecipienis

Wheee the Group s tmansferred an assct, the Group evalutes whelber it has teansfereed substantially all sks and 1ewards associated with the ownership of the
Financial assct. Tn such cases, the financial asser is de-recopmised. Where the Group has not transferred substntially all dsks and rewards of owuership uf the financial
asset, Ihe financial asset is not de-recognised.

Where the Group hias neither prunsferred nor retained substantally all risks and rewards of ownership of the fnancial assct, the financial asset is de-tecognised if the
Group docs nor rerained control of the financial asser, Where the Group retuins control of the financial asser, Uie asset is contmued to be recognised ta the estent of
continuing involvement in such financial assct

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash-un-hand and demand deposits with banks, The Group considers it's highly liquidl, short-term investments (having, maturity
less than three months) which can e readily convered to fixed/determinable amount of money and subject w insignificant disks arising from changes in their fair
values, a5 cash equivalents, Accurdingly time deposits with banks along with interest acenied thereon, having ardginal maturity less than three months, is consideced as
cash equivalent

Assets beld lor sale

Assets arc classificd as held For sale under current assets if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sule bansaction vather than through condnuing
use and a sale is considered highly prabable and is expecied to be sold within one year from the balance sheet date. They ure measured at the lower of their carying
amount and fair vahie less costs to sell, except for assers such as deferred tax assets, asseis urising fram employee benefus and financial assets which ace specilwaly

cxempt from this cequirement.

Provisions, i iabilities and geut assels

Provisions:

Vrovisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal oc constructive) as a result of a past cvent, it is proliahle thar an outflow of resonrces embadying,
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of such obligation can be made. Provisians are measured at the best tstimate of the
expenditure tequired to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date, 1F the effect of time value of inoney is naterdal i, the obligation is 1o be seuled afler a period
of 12 rmonths from the end of the reporting date, such provisions are discounted to reflect its present value using a pre-tax discounting cate thar ceflecrs the current
market assessments of tme value of money and risks specific to the obligation. When discannting is used, increase in the provision amount due ta the passape of ime
is recopnised as finance cost

Contingent liabilities:

Contingent lizbilites ace disclosed when there is a possible obligation asing rom past events, the exisience of which will be confissoed only by the occurrence or non-
accurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the contral of the Group ar a present obfigation that arises frony past cvents where it is cither
ot prabable that an ontflow of resanrces will ie enquired to setde the obligation or a reliable estimate of 1he amount canntot he made.




Contingenl asaets:
Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statement. However when there  a virtual certaintly dat an inflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will arise from the contingent asset, such asset and the related income is recognised in the period in which the changes vcaured

() Income tax
Tncome (ax expense for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based an the applicable income tax mtes with adjustments for changes in
deferred tax assets or liabilities attributable to temporacy differences and unused tax losses or credits

Current tax is calculated based on tax laws enacted or substantively enacted ar the end of the reporting penind.

Teferred tax is recognised on femporary differences arising fram the tax bases of assets and liabilitics and their respeciive carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it adses from initial cecognition of an asset or liability in 2 transaction that does not result from a
business combination and at the time of such transaction, affects neither the accounting profit or loss nur taxable profit or loss for the period. Deferred income tax is
deteernined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substanaally enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is tealised o the liability is setiled,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductibl porary difterences and unused tax losses only if it is probahle that the future rxable amounts will be available
against which those temporary differences/losses can be utilized. Minimum alternate tax (MAT?) credit entillement is recognised as an assct only when and to the
cxtent there is convincing evidence thar normal income tax will be paid duting the specified pedod. In the year in which MAT credit b cligible to be ised
as an asset, the said assct is created by way of 2 credit to the consolidated Sttement of Profit and Loss and shown as MAT credit entitlemunt. “I'his is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and tic carying amount of MAT credit entitlement is writien down to the extent it is not reasanably cectain that normal income tax will be paid
2 o LA v

Curtent tx sssets and tax liabilities are offsetted where the entity hus a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realisc the
asset and settle the liabilicy simulrancausly. Deferred x assers and liabilities are offset when there is a legully enfotceable right 1o offser cwrent bax assets and liabilitics
and when the deferred tax balances relale to the same taxation authority.

(}) Events after reporting date
Where events occurring after the Balance Shect date provide evidence of conditions that existed ar the end of the reporting petiud, the impact of such events is
adjusted within the ¢ lidated financial Othenwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

(k) Eaminge equity per share
Basic eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period atinbutable 1o the equity sharcholdes by the d average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period. "Lhe weighted average numbet of equity shares outstanding during the pediod and foc all pedods presented is adjusted for events
that have changed the number of outsianding equity shares, without a corresponding change in the tesources. For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per
cquity share, net profit for the period attributable to equity shateholders and the weighted average mumber of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, As on the balance sheet dates, the Parent Company has no dilutive patential equity shares.

FFrs
124

(1) IndAS 21 - The fifects of Changes in Foreln Exchange Ratas

On 28 March 2018, Minlistry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified the Companies {Indian Accaunting

dards) A di Rules, 2018 A dix B to Ind AS 21 - The Effects of Chaniges in Forelgn Exchange
Rates which clarilles the date of the transactlon far the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on Initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or incame, when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a
foreign currency. This amendment will come into force from 0L April 2018, The Company has evaluated the effect of
this on the financlal statements and the impact is not material.

[m) imLAS 125 - Revenue lrom Contratt with Costamess

On 28 March 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affalrs (MCA} has nottfled the Ind AS 115 - Revenus from Contract
with C The core principle of the new dard is that an entlty should recognlss revanue to dapict the
transfer of pramised goods or services to customers In an amount that reflects tha consideration ta which the entlty
axpects to be entitled In exchange for those goods or services. Further the new standard requires enhanced
disclosures about the nature, amount, iming and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arlsing from the entity's
contracts with The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 115 is financlal pericds beglnning on or after 01
April 2018, The affect on adoption of Ind AS 115 on the is i to be i

[
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CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financial statcments for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amount in ¥ Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

3 Cash and bank balances

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 1,420 1,420
Balances with banks

- In current accounts 202,029 201,177
Fixed Deposit in Bank 4,878,667 4,695,278

5,082,116 4,897,875

(b) Trade Receivables ~ Others
(Unsecured and considered good) 1,800,000 2,300,000

1,800,000 2,300,000

4  Other assets

(a) Non-current

(b) Cutrent
(Unsecured, cousidered good)
Balances with government authorities (**) 95,949 47,813

95,049 47,813

Balances with government authorities primarily include amounts realisable from Income Tax authorities. These are expected to be realised
(** within a period of one-year. Accordingly these balances have been classified as current assets.




CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amount in ¥ Rupecs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Number Amount Number Amount

5 Equity share capital

(@

(b)

©

@

Authorized share capital
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 4,250,000 42,500,000 4,250,000 42,500,000

4,250,000 42,500,000 4,250,000 42,500,000

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
FEquity shares of ¥ 10 cach 246,050 2,460,500 246,050 2,460,500

246,050 2,460,500 246,050 2,460,500

Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Number Amount Number Amount
Balance at the beginning of the year 246,050 2,460,500 246,050 2,460,500
Add : Issued during the year

Balance at the end of the year 246,050 2,460,500 246,050 2,460,500

No additional shares were allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shates or pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash during
the last five years. Further, none of the shares were bought back by the Company duting the last five years.

Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company:

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 Macch 2021
Name of the shareholders Number Percentage Number Percentage
(a) Bjjon Nag 84,450 34.32% 84,450 34.32%
(b) Pdyambada Nag 87,850 35.70% 87,850 35.70%
172,300 172,300

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a pat value of T 10 per share. Such holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per
share. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all
preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholdings, however, no such preferential amounts exists currently. During this financial yeat the
Company has not proposed/declared any dividend. However, if any dividend is proposed by the Board of Directors, it will be subject to the
approval of the Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend.
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CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to ¢ lidated fi ial for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amount in T Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

10 Other Income

Interest Tncome 237,229 248,775
Interest on Income Tax Refund 400 380
237,629 249,155

11 Other expenses

Accounting Charges 20,000 29,500
Bank Charges 107 720
Filling Fees 18,168 5,400
Demat Charges 4,063 600
Annual Custody Fees(NSDL) 47,795
Professional Fees 2,360 41,500
Professional Tax 5,000 5,000
Auditor's remuneration {refer note (a) below) 46,020 31,860
Listing Fees 50,740 29,500
RTA Charges 5,410
Secreterial Audit Fees 10,000
Genetat Expenses 590
Salary (Staff) 195,000

405,253 144,080

(2) Auditor's remuneration

Statutory Audit Fees 17,700 17,700
Other Audit Fees 28,320 14,160
46,020 31,860

————

/
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CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
. Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amount in T Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

12 Tax expense

(=)

' ()

Income tax in the statement of profit and loss:

Current tax 39,000 46,280

Deferred tax

Ptior Period Adjustment - 747
39,000 47,027

Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income comprises:

Deferred tax on fair value gains on investments in equity instruments through OCI 38,917,340 19,752,463

38,917,340 19,752,463

13 Earnings per equity share (EPS)

Net Profit before Dividend

Net profit attributable to equity sharcholders (206,624) 58,048
Number of equity shares outstanding duting the year 246,050 246,050
Face value per share 10 10
Eatnings per share
- Basic earnings per equity share (0.84) 0.24
- Diluted eatnings per equity share (0.84) 0.24

14 Kelated party disclosures

)

Information on related patty transactions as required by Ind AS - 24 - Related Party Disclosures for the year

List of telated Party

Associates

Name of the Company Percentage of holding
31st March 2022 31st March

Elisha Investments Limited 28.20% 28.20%

Transactions with related parties
Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March

No related party transactons are there.




CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financiol slutements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Allemount in € Rupees, unless otherwise stared)

15 Falr value mesaurcment

(a) Cotaggary wies chusallication ol Hnanisl inglrasrai — =
Particulars An st As
= ——— _ UMuch20@ M Machill
A. Pinaocial aseels:
{) Measured at fair value through profit or loss (EVTPL)
Tnvestments in unquoted mutual fonds
ii) Measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
Investnients in quoted equity instamentx (cefee siate (i) below) 71,304,213 83,158,390
Investments in unquoted equity instruments (refer note (i) helow) 151,959,649 56,793,760
iii) Measured al cast
Cash and cash equivalents 1,420 1,420
Dank balances other than cash and cash cquivakents abave 202,029 201,177
Bank deposits (with uriginal matudity of mote than 12 months) 4,878,667 4,695,278
Derivative instuments
Loans to employees
Secutity deposits
Trade receivables 1,800,000 2,300,000
Others
iv) Measured at coat 95,949 47,813
Investment in equity shatcs of subsidiacy company
Total financial asscts _ 236,241,997 17,197,506
B, Finaacial Habikides
Meaiied at amotined o
A ings (including current
Trude pryables
Securities deposits (repayable on demand)
Ouher financial liabilities 102,981 63,080
Tutal finaatial Habilites 102,980 63,080
Notes:

These investment arc not Yield for trading, Upon application of Tod AS - 109 - Financiel Instuments, the Company has chosen to measure Uhese investments i quoted equity instruments at FVIOCI irmvacably as the
management believes that presenting i value gains and Tosses eluting o dresc investments in the Statement of Profit and Loss saay not be indicative of the pecformance of the Company

C, Tairvalue hierarchy
The fair value of financial sssers and lishiliies are included st the amounts that would be ceceived to sell an esset ar paid Lo transter 3 lisbibry i au vrdudy markel between inasket participants ar the measurement date
Methods and assumptions used to estimato the fic vulues are consisient i all bie years Faic vahue ol financial instcuments refered (0 i note (3) zhove have been chassificd into thrce categories depending on the inputs used
in the valuation technique The hiecarchy gives the highest priotity to quoted prices in active matkers for ideatical assets and labilities and Jowest pdority 1o wnobservable entity specific inpts

e cateporics used acc as follows:
- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active maskets for Gnancial instruments

- Level 2: The fair valuc of fnancial instrumenta hat arc not traded in an active market is ined using valuntion echai which maximise the use of obscrvable macket data and cely as Gitle as possible on entity
specific estimates

- Level 3: IFone or more of the symificaut inpuls is nul based on observible mackel daty, the instment is included in level 3,

(a) Foxassets and Libilities which ate measuril at Guir value as al Balance Shect date, the classificalion of faie value by category sod Tevel on inputs used is given below:

As ot 31 March 2022: R
Particulas vl 1 Lewel2 Lerel3

i) Measured ot fair value through profit or loss (TVTPL)
Tavestments in unquoled mural funds

ii) Designated at fair value through Other Comprehensive Incarme (FVTOCT)
Tuvestineuts in quoled equity instauments 77,304,273

Invesiments in unquoted equity instrunents 151,959,649
As at 31 Masch 2021: B R
Particulars = ) Livel | Leve2 Level 3
i) Measured at fuir vulue thvough profit or loss (FVITPL)

Tuvestments in unquoled mute) funds

ii) Deaignated at fair valuc thraugh Other Comprehensive Income (RYTOCH)
hivestments iu quoted equily instruments 13,158,390
1 in unquoled equity i 56,793,760
As at 1 April 2020: . i, . - —
Particulam _ Lewell Laevel 2 Lewel 3

i) Meanured ai fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Investnents in unquoled mutua! funds

il) Deaignated at fair value through Other Compreliensive Income (FYTOCT)
Investments in quoled cquity instruments
in unquoted cquity i

(b) Computativn of fair values
Investments in mutual finds are shod-teem invesiments made in debt or liquid funds whose Bir value are considered as the net asset value (NAV) declared by Wheir respeciive fund houses on a duily busis Thus Ure declared
NAV is similac 10 fait markee value for these mutual fund investments since tansactions hetween the investur and fund houses will be cacried aut at such prices

in equity i long leom stategic ivestments made in certain listed or ualisted companies For listed campnnics, fic valuc is based on quoted market prices of sucly instaments as on the
Balance Shect date on the recognized stock cxchange (where taded volume is more during last six months). Fac investments in unquoled securities, the management ascedained Lheic Bic value by using Ure valuation
finique, like Book Value di atan appropriste rate which involves various judgements and assumptions
(c) Fair valuc of asscts and Gablifi at cost/ d coat

bpmnyp of their fuir values since tie Company doey nwt wnticipate that the carrying amount would be
ngg:‘-»‘- uf Gash and cash equivalents and tade payables approximate their carrying amonnis duc 10 the short
xRy -:p:.f\:u will not be significantly diffcrent rom the cacrying amount

-

“The carrying anount of financial resers and financial liahilities at rsed cost mre 8
significandly different rom the values that would be eventually reccived or scitied Management sox sy
term matucities of these instouments, l'oc long-term bowrowings at fized/ floating rites, rsasagy \S’I‘z:w
e -

5
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Notes to lidated fi ial st for the year ended 31 Marcch 2022

(All amount in ¥ Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

16 Fi ial risk

(a

Company's business activities ace exposed to a vasiety of financial risks, like credit risks, market risks and liquidity risks. Company's senior manugement is
responsible for establishing and mounilosing the risk management framework within its overall risk management objectives and strategics approved by the
Board of Directors. Such risk management strategics and objectives are established to identify and analyze polential risks faced by the Company, set and
monitor appropgate dsk limits and controls, periodically review the changces in market conditions and assess risk munagemenl per(ormances. Aoy change
in Company's risk management objectives and policies need approval of it's Board of Directors.

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to risk that a connterpacty will default on its contractual nbligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. Credit risk arises primarily
from financial assets such as trade receivables, other balances with banks, loans and other recetvables.

~

i) Trade receivables
Customer credit risky is managed by cach business unil in accordance with the credit policy, procedures and coatrols relating to credit cisk management.
Credit quality of each individual customer is asscssed based on financial positions, past trends, market reputation, prevailing market and economic
coaditions, expected business and aaticipated regulatory changes. Based on this evaluatios, credit limit and credit terms are decided for cach individual
customer. Exposurc to customer credit risk is regulady monitored through credit locks and release.

Impairment of trade receivables is hased on expected credil loss model (simplistic approach) depending upon the histodcal data, preseat financial
conditions of customers and anticipated regulatory chanpes.

i) Other financial instruments
Credit dsks from other financial instruments includes maialy cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks. Such rdsks is managed by the central
treasury department of the Company in accordance with Company's averall investment policy approved by its Board of Dicectoss. Iuvestments of sucplus
[unds are made in short term debt/liquid mutual funds of rated fund houses haviag the highest crcdit rating and in short term time deposits of reputed
banks with a very strong financial position, Tnvestment limits are set for each mutual fund and bank deposits. Risk concentration is minimized by investing
in a wide range of mutual funds/bank deposits. These investments ate reviewed by the Board of Directors on a quarlerly basis.

The Company has no exposure to credit nisk relating to its cash and cash equivalents. Credit dsk for other financial instruments are monitored by the
central treasury department in accordance with its overall nisk management policies, Impairment of such assets is computed per expected credit loss model
(peneral approach) assessed on the basis of financial position, detailed analysis and cxpecied business of the counterparty to such nancial assets.

(b) Market rigk:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will Auctuate duc to changes in market prices. Market risks comprises
of three types - interesi rate risk, currency sk and other price nisk, such as equity price dsk and commodity tisk. Financial instrumeats affected by market
isks include long tetm bortowings, investments in mutual funds or equity instruments and denvative mstruments.

(c) Liquidity risk:

[Cl

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company tnay not be able lo meel its coutractual obligations sssociated with its financial liabilities. The central treasury
depactment of the Company manages its liquidity sk by prepating and continuously monitoring business plans or tolling cash flow [orecasts which
ensures that the funds required for carrying on its business operations and mecting its financial Labilitics are available io 2 timely manner and at an optimal
cost. ‘I'ne Company plans to meet the contructual obligations rom its internal accruals and if required, also from fund based and non-fund based credit
limits with banks. Additionally, surplus funds gencrated from operations are parked in bank deposits which can be readily liquidated when required.

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilitics at the eporting date. The amounts reported ace on gross and

lyearto 3yearto

C | ity of fi ial liabiliti g
y O iabilities Upto 1 year lycar 5 year Total
Au at 31 March 2022
Borrowings (including curreat maturities) -
T'rade payables -
Other financial liabilities 17,700 . - 17,700
As at 31 March 2021,
Borrowings (including current maturitics) . -
Trade payables - -
Other financial liabilities 17,700 . 17,700
As at 1 April 2020
Borcowings (including current matudties) . -
Trade payables - -
Other financial liabilities 14,750 14,750

~

Capital management
For the purpose of Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital, ather equity reserves and long term bortowed capital less
cash and cash equivalents. The primary objective of capital management is to maintain an efficient capital struclure (o reduce the cost of capital, support
corporate expansion strategies and to maximise shareholder's value. If the company makes short ter hangwings to meet its working capital requirements,
such short term bomrowingy are gencrdlly squated ol as on the Balance Shect date. o =
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CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
" Notes to liduted R 1 for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Allamonnt in T Rupees, unless otherwise siated)

17 Firet tiroe adoption of Ind AS

These are the Company's first lidated fi ial prepared in accord: with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
‘The accounting policies sel out in Note 2 has been applied coasisteatly in prepanng the apmmg Ind AS Balance Shcet aq on 1 Apnil 2018 (the Company's date of ition), the compurative information | d
in thesc smndalonc fnancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 aad i preparing these ¢ lidated & for the year ended 31 March 2020. In proparing its opening Ind As Blance

Sheet, the Company has adjusted the amounts reported previously in standaloae ﬁnancizl slx(cmtnls prepared in acrordance with the accounting standasds notified under Cotnpanies (Accounting Standard Rules),
2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act (Indian GAAP). An explanation nf how the transiton frow previous Indian GAAP 1o Ind AS has impacted the Company's financial position, financial
pecformance and cash dows is set out i the fout noles 1o first time adaption

Ind AS 101 has set out certain mandatory cxceptions and optional exemptiuns to be applied for transition from the existing Indian GAAT to Ind AS. The Company has adopted the following in preparing its
opening Ind AS Balance Sheet.

{a) Optional exemptions

Designation of previously recopnized equity instruments - Ind AS 101 - permits the entity to designate its existing equity instruments on the basis of the facts and drcumslances cxisting as oo the transition date.
The Company has elected to apply this exemption foc its long term, steategic investinents in equity shares,

(b) Mandatory exceptions
i) Derecognition of financial assets and liabilitics - fnd AS 101 requires a (irst time adopter 1o apply the de-recogmition peovisions of [nd AS 109 prospectively fron the dare of transition. Altecnatively such first time
adopler can apply such de-recoguition provisions pectively from a date of Company's choice, if adequate information reguired 10 apply Ind AS 10Y to Gnancial asscts and labilities de-recognized previous to
the datc of transition wa3 initially available at the tinie of such gansactions. The Corapany has clecled to apply the de-recognition provisiou of Ind AS 109 prospectively from the date of transition.

ii) Classification and measurement of financial assets - ind AS 101 provides that classification and of financial assets recognized earlier under the previons Indian GAAP shonld be based upon facts and
circunstances existing as on the transition date. The Company has assessed the same accordingly

iii) Estimales - An cntity’s estimatcs in accordance with Tnd AS at the date of transition to Tnd AS shall be consistent with estioates made at the samne clate in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to
reflect any diffecence in accouating policies), unless there is objective evideace that those estimates were in error. Ind AS estimates as at 1 April 2018 are consistent with the cstimates as at the same date made in
conformity with peevious GAAP.

(¢9) Reconciliation b previous GAAP and 1nd AS
Ind AS 101 requires an euiily ta eoncile equity, tolal comprehensive income and cash flows for the prior peods. The following tables represent the reconciliation from previous Indian GAAP to Ind AS.

i) Effect of Ind AS ndoption on total equily:

Pariiculare A% o1 Al
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Edquity as per previous GAAP 2,460,500 2,460,500
Adjustments:
Lffect of using EIR method for measurement of long-term borrowings
Giffect of measuring current investments at fair value
Liffeet of mg noa-currenl i at fair value 155,328,646 105,092,481
Total adjustment 155,328,646 105,092,481
Total equity as per Ind AS 157,789,146 107,552,981
i) Reconciliation of tatul comprehensive incorne for the year ended 31 March 2019:

. Year ended
Particul

iculars Notes 31 March 2020

11,086

Profil afier 1ax as per previous GAAP

Adjustments:

Fair valuation of investments in mutual funds carried at FVTPL
EIR impact on foreign cuerency borrowings

Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plans

Impact on account of forward contract

Profit afier 1ax as per Ind AS 11,086
Other comprebensive income:

Changes in fair value of equity instruments (109568,707)
Actuarial gain / loss on defined benefit plans

(109,568,707)

Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS 109,557,621)
iii) EfMfect of Ind AS adoplion on the dalone § of Cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2019
“I'here are no material differences the lidated of cash flows prepared under previous GAAD and Tud AS.

(d) Fair valuation of investiments
Under the previous lndian GAAP investments were classificd into current and non-current, based on the intended holding peiod and realisability. Investotents in non current equity instruments were wieasured at
cost less provision foc decline (other than temporary decline) mn the value of such investruents while short term mutual funds were valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lowee as at each Balance Sheet

date.
Under 1od AS, these i are required 10 be d at fair value. Non-current equity i bas been desigaated as fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTQCI) and changes in its fair
value as on the ition date is d in Equity i theough OCI witl an equivalent change in n value. Subseq change in fair value for yeac ended 31 March 2019 is accounted under

OCL. This resulted in an increase of X 57.71 lacs in investment and an equivalent amouat of increase in olhier equity as oa the ansition date. For the year ended 31 March 2020 here is a further fair value loss of
R 1095.52 lacs accounted for under OCI reserves with corresponding increase in investment values

{€) Deferred tax
Erstwhile ladian GAAP required recognition of deferred ax on timing differences while Tnd AS 12 requires deferted tax to be recognized for temporary diffe es. A gly, the Company has recognized
deferced tax on all adj made on itioo 10 Ind AS with careespouding adjustments in other equity.
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